EMG Technology, LLC v. Apple, Inc.

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
TYLER DIVISION

EMG TECHNOLOGY, LLC,
Plaintiff,
V.

APPLE INC., Case No. 6:08-cv-447-LED
AMERICAN AIRLINES, INC.,
BLOOMBERG, L.P., JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC.,
DELL, INC,,

HYATT CORPORATION,

MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC., &
BARNES & NOBLE, INC.,

Defendants.

FIFTH AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff EMG Technology, LLC (“EMG”) allges as follows for its fifth amended
complaint against Defendants Apple Inc., Aroan Airlines, Inc., Bloomberg, L.P., United
Parcel Service, Inc., Dell, Inc., Hyatt CorporatioMarriott International, Inc., and Barnes &
Noble, Inc. (collectiely, “Defendants”):

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This is an action for patent infringemtén violation of the Patent Act of the
United States, 35 U.S.C. 88 1 et seq.

2. This Court has original and exclussgbject matter jurisdiction over the patent
infringement claims for reliefinder 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1331 and 1338(a).

3. The Court has personal jurisdictioreoefendants because Defendants have

transacted and are transacting besmin the Eastern District ©®&xas that includes, but is not
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limited to, the use and sale of products and systéat practice the subject matter claimed in the
patents involved in this action.

4. Venue is proper in this distrighder 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1391(b-ahd 1400(b) because
a substantial part of the events or omissions gitisgto the claims occurred in this District,
where Defendants have done business and condmifténging acts and continue to do business
and to commit infringing acts.

PARTIES

5. EMG is a limited liability company ganized under the laws of the State of
California with its principal plee of business in Los Angeles,l@ania. EMG operates offices
at 100 East Ferguson, Ste. 1200, Tyler, Texas 75702.

6. EMG is informed and believes, andtbat basis allegethat Defendant Apple
Inc. (“Apple”), is a corporatin organized under the laws of tBate of California, with its
principal place of business at 1 Infinite Loop, Cupertino, California 95014. EMG is further
informed and believes, and on that basis allethes Apple is in th business of designing,
manufacturing, marketing, seily and/or distributing computgrcellular phones, and other
electronic devices, and derivesignificant portion of its revaue from the sale of portable
devices and cellular phones —ioais models of the Apple ii®ne and the Apple iPod Touch —
capable of browsing the Internating a small screen, includimgebsites reformatted for that
purpose. EMG is informed and believes, and an iasis alleges, that, at all times relevant
hereto, Apple has done and continuedddusiness in this judicial district.

7. EMG is informed and believes, andtbat basis alleges, that Defendant
American Airlines, Inc. (“American”), is a cporation organized under thaws of the State of

Delaware, with its principal place of busaseat 4333 Amon Carter Blvd., Fort Worth, Texas



76155. EMG is further informed and believes, andha basis alleges, that American is in the
business of airline travel and garservices, and derives a sigeadint portion of its revenue from
the sale of its services througtternet web sitesncluding web sites reformatted for use on
portable devices and cellular phere@pable of browsing the Iintet using a small screen.

EMG is informed and believes, and on that §adlieges, that, at all times relevant hereto,
American has done and continues tdodsiness in this judicial district.

8. EMG is informed and believes, andtbat basis alleges, that Defendant
Bloomberg, L.P. (“Bloomberg”), is a limited partstip organized under the laws of the State of
Delaware, with its principal place of businegs31 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York
10022. EMG is further informed and believes, andham basis alleges, that Bloomberg is in the
business of providing news and information almdiness and financenéthat a significant
portion of its revenue from the sale of its seegithrough its Internet Wwesites, including web
sites reformatted for use on pdita devices and cellular phones abje of browsing the Internet
using a small screen. EMG is informed and belieard,on that basis alleges, that, at all times
relevant hereto, Bloomberg has done and corgimai€lo business in thjgdicial district.

9. EMG is informed and believes, andthat basis allegethat Defendant United
Parcel Service, Inc. (“UPS”), is a corporatiogamized under the laws of the State of Delaware,
with its principal place of business at 55 Gédwe Parkway, NE, Atlanta, Georgia 30328. EMG
is further informed and believes, and on thaidalleges, that UPS is in the business of
providing shipping services, and degs a significant poiin of its revenue from the sale of its
services on its Internet web sites, including wiéds reformatted for use on portable devices and

cellular phones capable bfowsing the Internet using a small screen. EMG is informed and



believes, and on that basis allsgtnat, at all times relevahereto, UPS has done and continues
to do business in this judicial district.

10. EMG is informed and believes, and on thedis alleges, that Defendant Dell, Inc.
(“Dell”), is a corporation orgaaed under the laws of the StateD#laware, with its principal
place of business at One Dell Way, Round Rdekas 78682. EMG is further informed and
believes, and on that basis ghs, that Dell is in the busss of designing, manufacturing,
marketing, selling and/or distiting computers, and other di@nic devices, and derives a
significant portion of its revenueom the sale of its services through Internet web sites,
including web sites reformatted for use ontable devices and celar phones capable of
browsing the Internet using a small screen. Geid informed and believes, and on that basis
alleges, that, at all times rgkmnt hereto, Dell has done and toues to do business in this
judicial district.

11. EMG is informed and believes, and oatthasis alleges, that Hyatt Corporation
(“Hyatt”) is a corporation orgamed under the laws of the StateD#laware, with its principal
place of business at 71 South Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60606. EMG is further informed and
believes, and on that basis allsegtnat Hyatt is in the busise of providing hotel, resort and
restaurant services, and derigesignificant portion of its reveie from the promotion and sale
of its services through Internet web sitegjuding web sites reformatted for use on portable
devices and cellular phoseapable of browsing the Interneting a small screen. EMG is
informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that, at all times relevant hereto, Hyatt has done
and continues to do businesgtiis judicial district.

12. EMG is informed and believes, andtbat basis alleges, that Marriott

International, Inc. (“Marriott”) is a corporian organized under the laws of the State of



Delaware, with its principal place of buess at 10400 Fernwood Road, Bethesda, MD 20817.
EMG is further informed and believes, and on thedis alleges, that Marriott is in the business
of providing hotel, resort andstaurant services, and derivesignificant portion of its revenue
from the promotion and sale $ services through Internet web sites, including web sites
reformatted for use on portable devices andizllphones capable bfowsing the Internet
using a small screen. EMG is informed and belieard,on that basis alleges, that, at all times
relevant hereto, Marriott has done and contnioedo business in this judicial district.

13. EMG is informed and believes, and oatthasis alleges, that Barnes & Noble,
Inc. (“Barnes & Noble”) is a corporation organizender the laws of the State of Delaware, with
its principal place of business at 122 Birenue, New York, NY 10011. EMG is further
informed and believes, and on that basis allebes Barnes & Noble is the business of selling
books, music, DVD, video games, and related prtsdaicd services, and derives a significant
portion of its revenue from the promotion and sdlgs products and seioes through Internet
web sites, including web sites reformatteduee on portable devicasd cellular phones
capable of browsing the Internating a small screen. EMG is informed and believes, and on
that basis alleges, that, at all times relevargtoe Barnes & Noble hatone and continues to do
business in thisudicial district.

PATENTS

14. United States Patent No. 7,441,196 (th@6 Patent”) entitled “Apparatus and
Method of Manipulating a Region on a WireteDevice Screen for Viewing, Zooming and
Scrolling Internet Content” was duly and legaigued on October 21, 2008. A true and correct
copy of the ‘196 Patent is attached heret&@sibit “A” and incorporated herein by this

reference. By a series of assignments, EM@is the assignee of tkatire right, title and



interest in and to the ‘196 teat, including all rights to enfoe the ‘196 Patent and to recover
for infringement. The ‘196 Pateis valid and in force.

15. United States Patent No. 7,020,845 (1845 Patent”) entitled “Navigating
Internet Content on a Television Using a Sinmgdfinterface and a Remote Control” was duly
and legally issued on March 28, 2006. A true emdect copy of the845 Patent is attached
hereto as Exhibit “B” anthcorporated herein by this refeen By a series of assignments,
EMG is now the assignee of the entire right, @thel interest in and tihe ‘845 Patent, including
all rights to enforce the ‘845 Pateand to recover for infringemeniThe ‘845 Patent is valid and
in force.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Infringement of the ‘196 Patent

16. EMG refers to and incorporatesrein by reference paragraphs 1-15.

17.  Apple, American, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt, Marriott, and Barnes & Noble,
by the acts complained of herein, and bykimg, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or
importing in the United States,dluding in the Eastern Districtf Texas, products and/or
services embodying the invention, have in th&t,pdo now, and continue infringe the ‘196
Patent directly, contributorilgnd/or by inducement, litergland/or under the doctrine of
equivalents, in violaon of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

18. By reason of the acts of Apple, Anoan, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt, Marriott,
and Barnes & Noble alleged herein, EMG ha$esad damage in an amount to be proved at
trial.

19.  Apple, American, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt, Marriott, and Barnes & Noble

threaten to continue to engaigethe acts complained of ten and, unless restrained and



enjoined, will continue to do so, all to EMG’saparable injury. It would be difficult to
ascertain the amount of compensation that woflitddhEMG adequate relief for such future and
continuing acts, and a multiplicity of judicial proceedings would be required. EMG does not
have an adequate remedy at law tmpensate it for the injuries threatened.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Infringement of the ‘845 Patent

20. EMG refers to and incorporatesrein by reference paragraphs 1-19.

21.  Apple, American, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt, Marriott, and Barnes & Noble,
by the acts complained of herein, and bykimg, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or
importing in the United States,dluding in the Eastern Districtf Texas, products and/or
services embodying the invention, have in th&,pdo now, and continue infringe the ‘845
Patent directly, contributorilgnd/or by inducement, litergland/or under the doctrine of
equivalents, in violdon of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

22. By reason of the acts of Apple, Aiman, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt, Marriott,
and Barnes & Noble alleged herein, EMG ha$esad damage in an amount to be proved at
trial.

23.  Apple, American, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt, Marriott, and Barnes & Noble
threaten to continue to engaigethe acts complained of ten and, unless restrained and
enjoined, will continue to do so, all to EMG’saparable injury. It would be difficult to
ascertain the amount of compensation that woflitddhEMG adequate relief for such future and
continuing acts, and a multiplicity of judicial proceedings would be required. EMG does not

have an adequate remedy at law to cengate it for the injuries threatened.



JURY DEMAND

24. EMG demands a jury triah all issues so triable.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, EMG prays for relief as follows:

A. For an order finding that the ‘196 Patés not invalid ad not unenforceable;

B. For an order finding that the ‘845 Pattés not invalid ad not unenforceable;

C. For an order finding that Apple, Aarican, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt,
Marriott, and Barnes & Noble have infringe@ti196 Patent and th&845 Patent directly,
contributorily and/or by inducemenn, violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,

D. For an order temporarily, preliminlgrand permanently enjoining Apple,
American, Bloomberg, UPS, Dell, Hyatt, Marricafjd Barnes & Noble, theofficers, directors,
agents, servants, affiliates, employees, subsgdiadivisions, branches, parents, attorneys,
representatives, privies, and aihers acting in concert or paifiation with any of them, from
infringing the ‘196 Patent and/the ‘845 Patent directly, contritarily and/or by inducement, in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271;

E. For an order directing Defendantdite with the Court, and serve upon EMG’s
counsel, within thirty (30) dayafter entry of the order of injiction, a report setting forth the
manner and form in which they have complied with the injunction;

F. For an order awarding EMG genematifor specific damages adequate to
compensate EMG for Defendants’ infringementluding a reasonable royalty and/or lost
profits, in amounts to be fixed by the Court atardance with proof, including enhanced and/or
exemplary damages, as appropriate, as well a§ Refendants’ profits or gains of any kind

from their acts of patent infringement;



G. For an order awarding EMG pre-judgmamneérest and post-judigent interest at
the maximum rate allowed by law;

H. For an order requiring an accountingtué damages to which EMG is found to be
entitled,;

l. For an order awarding enhanced damages pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284 due to the
willful and wanton nature of Defendants’ infringement;

J. For an order declaring this to beextteptional case pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285
and awarding EMG its attorneys’ fees;

K. For an order awarding EMG its costs of court; and

L. For an order awarding EMG such othaddurther relief as the Court deems just

and proper.

Dated: October 20, 2009 Respectfully Submitted,

OF COUNSEL: By: /s/ Charles Ainsworth
Charles Ainsworth

Jeffer, Mangels, Butler and Marmaro, LLP  State Bar No. 00783521
Robert Christopher Bunt

Stanley M. Gibson State Bar No. 00787165
(Cal. Bar No. 162329) PARKER, BUNT & AINSWORTH, P.C.
smg@j mbm.com 100 E. Ferguson, Suite 1114
Tyler, TX 75702
Joshua S. Hodas, Ph.D. 903/531-3535
(Cal. Bar No. 250812) 903/533-9687
Jsh@jmbm.com E-mail: charley@pbatyler.com

E-mail: rcbunt@pbatyler.com
1900 Avenue of the Stars, Seventh Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067 ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF,

Telephone: (310) 203-8080
Facsimile: (310) 203-0567 EMG TECHNOLOGY, LLC

Manatt, Phelps & Phillips, LLP

Robert D. Becker
(Cal. Bar No. 160648)
rbecker @manatt.com

Shawn G. Hansen
(Cal. Bar No. 197033)
shansen@manatt.com



1001 Page Mill Road, Building 2
Palo Alto, CA 94304
Telephone: (650) 812-1300
Facsimile: (650) 213-0260

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that allaunsel of record, who are deemed to have consented to
electronic service ateeing served this J0day of October, 2009, with a copy of this document
via the Court’'s CM/ECF systeper Local Rule CV-5(a)(3).

/s/ Charles Ainsworth
CHARLES AINSWORTH
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